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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: My name is

          3  Madeline Provenzano and I Chair the Committee on

          4  Housing and Buildings. Today, the Committee is

          5  conducting a hearing on two issues. First is

          6  Proposed Intro No. 114A, which is a local law that

          7  would amend the administrative code of the City of

          8  New York in relation to increasing penalties for

          9  violating the Housing Maintenance Code by failing to

         10  provide adequate heat and hot water. And on Proposed

         11  Intro. No. 189A, in relation to clarifying the

         12  rights of pet owners in multi- dwellings. Because

         13  both of these bills have been amended since we've

         14  last met, I'd like to outline the changes.

         15                 Intro No. 114A would increase the

         16  civil penalties for building owners who fail to

         17  provide adequate heat or hot water to a building.

         18  The current civil penalty is $250 per day. And the

         19  original version of Intro 114 doubled that penalty

         20  to $500 per day. The amended version we will hear

         21  today allows for a range so that the penalty must be

         22  not less than $250 per day, but not more than $500

         23  per day.

         24                 Proposed Intro 114A would impose an

         25  additional penalty of not less than $500 per day nor
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          2  more than $1,000 per day for each subsequent

          3  violation at the same dwelling or multi- dwelling

          4  during the same calendar year. Or in cases where the

          5  violator has previously failed to provide heat

          6  during that same heat season. The original version

          7  of Intro No. 114 had called for a flat fee of $1,000

          8  per day. And referred to subsequent violations by

          9  individual instead of by dwelling. Finally, the

         10  enactment clause was amended so that the bill will

         11  take effect in 40 days instead of the previously

         12  written 90 days so that will be able to go into

         13  effect this winter.

         14                 There has also been some amendments

         15  to Intro 189. Proposed Intro No. 189A specifies that

         16  the lease provisions that have been waived in

         17  addition to applying for the duration of a tenant's

         18  occupancy would continue to apply if the tenant

         19  should move apartments within the same building and

         20  for each species of pet that has been harbored in

         21  that building. The provision applies to any tenant

         22  in a multi- dwelling who has harbored a household

         23  pet at any time since July 19, 1995, during their

         24  occupancy in the building in which they currently

         25  reside.
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          2                 Three new subdivisions would also be

          3  added to the administrative code. One would specify

          4  that a pet may be replaced by another pet. But the

          5  total number of pets must not exceed the total

          6  number of pets harbored by the tenant at any time

          7  since July 19, 1995. The second allows a building

          8  owner to extend written permission to a tenant to

          9  harbor a pet of a species different from a previous

         10  pet. The third new subdivision states that no

         11  language contained in the provisions shall be

         12  construed to limit the rights provided to tenants

         13  under the early subdivisions.

         14                 Those folks that wish to testify, you

         15  know that you must sign in. Even though you may have

         16  called and said you wanted to testify, you still

         17  have to sign in with the Sergeant of Arms. A lot of

         18  folks that are here are the same folks that were

         19  here before. So once again, I'm asking you to be

         20  nice, peaceful people. Listen to the testimony

         21  whether you approve or you don't approve, just shake

         22  your head nicely. We'll all act like civilized folk

         23  that we are.

         24                 My colleagues that are with me today

         25  on my right we have, Councilman Dennis Gallagher,

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Council Member James Oddo, Council Member Tony

          3  Avella, who is really over there; Council Member

          4  Leroy Comrie, Councilwoman Diana Reyna and to my

          5  left, Council Member Joel Rivera and Councilwoman,

          6  who are you again; Melinda Katz, the sponsor of the

          7  bill. Melinda, would you like to say a few words?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That would be

          9  great. I want to thank everyone for coming out here

         10  again and just to say a few words about Intro 189A.

         11  This is a piece of legislation that has been years

         12  in the making. To me, it makes sense. It's a common

         13  sense type of bill that Mary Max so wonderfully puts

         14  it all the time. It is a common sense type of bill.

         15  Right now as the law it stands, says that if you

         16  have a pet in a multiple dwelling and the landlord

         17  doesn't go for an eviction within three months, then

         18  he is deemed or she is deemed to have waived the

         19  right to evict that tenant based only that pet. Now

         20  as an attorney and a Councilwoman, I would say that

         21  that waiver goes with the contract and that contract

         22  is with the landlord and the tenant. The contract is

         23  not with the landlord and the pet. When that pet

         24  dies, I believe that waiver still exists because the

         25  waiver is to the contract and the contract is to the
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          2  two parties involved with that.

          3                 This piece of legislation simply

          4  says, that if the pet dies, the waiver still exists

          5  and the tenant is allowed to get another pet. I

          6  believe it's common sense. I believe it's the right

          7  thing to do. Today, I'm hoping that we get a motion

          8  to approve this and it goes to the floor. But I want

          9  to thank everyone for their involvement. There are

         10  so many advocates in the room that truly know and

         11  believe that pets become part of your life. They

         12  become your friends. They become your family and

         13  more importantly, just legally, if you have a waiver

         14  you learn to rely on that waiver. It becomes part of

         15  that agreement between the parties. I look forward

         16  to hearing testimony today and I really do just want

         17  to thank everyone for their extreme support over so

         18  many years of working on this legislation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We have no

         20  Administration officials here today to testify.

         21  Actually, we're only going to be hearing testimony

         22  on what we're calling the Pet Bill. The other one

         23  we've already heard testimony and at some point we

         24  will vote on it. We will be putting a three minute

         25  clock on those that are testifying to move this
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          2  along. I will be calling folks up in panels. Our

          3  first panel is Ed Sayers, Mary Max, Crystal Hunt,

          4  and Grant Aliksander. Where are all you folks?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Madam Chair, may

          6  I? I just want to thank Crystal Hunt and Grant

          7  Aliksander. They are both from the Guiding Light and

          8  Peter and Mary Max who have been great advocates.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You all

         10  decide who will speak first and then just introduce

         11  yourself and speak.

         12                 MS. WEISBERG: Good afternoon. My name

         13  is Lisa Weisberg. I'm Senior Vice President of the

         14  Government Affairs Department at the ASPCA. I'm

         15  speaking on behalf of our President, Ed Sayers. I

         16  would like to thank the City Council, Committee on

         17  Buildings, once again for hearing this issue. We

         18  believe this is a very reasonable compromise between

         19  having pets in New York City housing and the

         20  concerns of the real estate industry. We are

         21  absolutely committed to making New York City a no

         22  kill City, where no healthy adoptable animal has to

         23  be put to sleep.

         24                 In order to do that, this legislation

         25  is absolutely crucial. For us to find homes for
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          2  these wonderful animals and these are well behaved

          3  healthy animals and we're talking about tenants who

          4  have been responsible caretakers. We've all heard

          5  the arguments for and against. This legislation is

          6  really crucial to all of our efforts in finding

          7  homes for the animals and really reuniting people

          8  with their pets which again, has been so important

          9  in the quality of life that we all have and share in

         10  the City.

         11                 We get about 50 percent of the

         12  animals turned into us because of the current

         13  prohibitions in the law. Not only does it prevent

         14  people from keeping pets, but it also prevents

         15  people from taking these wonderful animals out of

         16  the shelters. We really do urge your support and

         17  approval of this legislation as soon as possible.

         18  Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you. If

         20  it's off, it's on. Please identify yourself first.

         21                 MS. MAX: Mary Max and I lost my

         22  husband, so I don't know where he is. Thank you

         23  Housing and Buildings Committee for having yet

         24  another hearing on this bill. And I would like to

         25  urge you to pass this bill out of Committee today.
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          2  Not to repeat myself, but it really is a common

          3  sense bill. I think we have been very reasonable in

          4  our negotiations on our end appeasing many of the

          5  landlords which is as we know at one time, this

          6  bill, there was a blanket approval for senior

          7  citizens and we stripped that. At one time, the

          8  waiver was just to go with as long as your first

          9  animal was approved, every animal thereafter was

         10  approved. We stripped that. Now it's just one for

         11  one.

         12                 I don't know if you've heard from all

         13  the citizens of New York like I do. There are so

         14  many people in New York that are in a lot of pain

         15  and are really lonely and are very depressed because

         16  they've lived with an animal for 15, 17, 20 years.

         17  The animal has died and they just can't get another.

         18  That seems very unreasonable to me and it seems very

         19  cruel. And I don't think that what we're asking is

         20  extraordinary. It's just a way of life. Whether you

         21  live in New York City, Buffalo, Paris, London, it's

         22  just people have bonds with their animals. As we

         23  know, the bill also protects landlords because of

         24  the nuisance clause. So again, I'm just urging you

         25  to pass this bill today because I really do think
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          2  it's a bill that is not asking for too much.

          3                 I'd also like to read a little

          4  something that was published in Boston's paper, The

          5  Globe. I know politics isn't known for it's

          6  sentimentality. But I do want to read this. This was

          7  a lovely piece that was published about a man who's

          8  dog is about to pass away. I'm just going to read

          9  you some of the things that he had said. He had just

         10  gone through a divorce and his dog is passing away.

         11  He says, women, of course, come and go, but dogs are

         12  forever. Throughout, he (meaning his dog), has shown

         13  me sunrises and sunsets that I wouldn't otherwise

         14  have seen. He has taught me that snow is a gift;

         15  that the ocean is there for swimming; that the

         16  coldest winter mornings and the hottest summer days

         17  are never as bad as people say. He has introduced me

         18  to people, kind people, whom I otherwise wouldn't

         19  have met. He has forced me to take time every

         20  morning to contemplate the day ahead. With his tail

         21  swishing swagger, he has taught me to slow down, to

         22  pause in an esplanade field around the public garden

         23  bench. The journey being as good as the destination.

         24                 The big ruse which I think he figured

         25  out years ago was that all these walks were really
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          2  meant for him. He has been an anchor to me in bad

          3  times. A ballast amid occasional uncertainly; a dose

          4  of humility when things might be going a little too

          5  well. He has been a sanctuary, a confidant, and an

          6  occasional excuse. He regards it as his personal

          7  mission to make me laugh whether ritualistic dance

          8  over a pig's ear or a gushing lick to my face. He's

          9  never once said the wrong thing and it's impossible

         10  to be in a bad mood around him. A dog can change a

         11  man. I look back at the lessons learned from this

         12  calm and dignified creature. Lessons of temperance,

         13  patience and compassion that will guide us to the

         14  end.

         15                 I hear stories like this from so many

         16  citizens in New York all of the time. I really think

         17  we should take care of the people in this City and

         18  pass this bill. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         20  Mary. Next.

         21                 MS. HUNT: I originally came up here

         22  from Florida --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You want to

         24  pull that a little closer to you.

         25                 MS. HUNT: I'm Crystal Hunt. I
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          2  originally came up here from Florida to be on

          3  Guiding Light. I got lucky and they invited my dog

          4  to be a part of the show which Grant gave me. I

          5  really wouldn't know how to live without my baby

          6  being with me. The dog's, they're not dogs. They

          7  turn into like your soul mates. They're somebody you

          8  love and they brighten your day every morning when

          9  you see them wake up next to you. There is a lot of

         10  people in my building, elderly people and I look at

         11  them and I don't know that they would even be here

         12  without their pet. That's what they hold onto. It's

         13  like their kid. They've got to be there. They've got

         14  to get through whatever illness it is. They've got

         15  to be there because they have got to take care of

         16  their pet.

         17                 I know they did some studies about

         18  people that were terminally ill and they were

         19  visited by pets every day and the people that were

         20  visited by pets every day, they actually had a

         21  better quality life and they survived longer than

         22  they were even given. I know it sounds like pets

         23  would not be that much in a person's life, but it

         24  really is. It gives people something to hang onto.

         25  Whether it's their kid or not, it really does mean a
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          2  lot to a person in their life. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you. Go

          4  ahead.

          5                 MR. ALIKSANDER: My name is Grant

          6  Aliksander. I originally came to the City over 20

          7  years ago and I came with three animals. And as they

          8  passed on, I replaced them with animals that I found

          9  on the streets in the City. I've always had

         10  companion animals. They're an important part of my

         11  identity. I think they are an important part of a

         12  lot of New Yorkers identity. Beyond that, it strikes

         13  me a lot of times, I've originally thought that when

         14  I would see blind people, very old people, people

         15  with some handicap or disability in this City, I

         16  would think, my god, how do these people make it in

         17  this City.

         18                 But as I have lived in New York over

         19  the years, I've realized this is the greatest place

         20  in the world to live if you are old or handicapped.

         21  Because there are so many services here to provide

         22  for the needs of these people. It truly is. A

         23  companion animal is a lifeline for someone in those

         24  circumstances. And in New York traditionally, we

         25  find a way to place importance on the value of these
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          2  sometimes marginal issues. This is not a marginal

          3  thing. This is something that is essential to the

          4  livelihood of many people in this City and I hope

          5  you find a way to work this out.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you. Do

          7  we have any questions for this panel? We've also

          8  been joined by Council Member Robert Jackson. Thank

          9  you very much. The next panel is Ezra Goodman, Jack

         10  Raskin, Ed Yaker, Bette Levine. I would also just

         11  ask that you hold down the applause. Although, I

         12  have a feeling some of you won't applaud for this

         13  panel. But I ask you to hold down the applause

         14  because in that way I could keep you from not booing

         15  or doing other kinds of thing. At the very end, if

         16  you want, we'll give you five minutes to sit there

         17  and applaud. Thank you. I appreciate it. Anyone who

         18  wants to start first, just decide. State your name

         19  and go right ahead.

         20                 MR. GOODMAN: Good afternoon. I'm Ezra

         21  Goodman of the law firm of Szold & Brandwen. I'm

         22  testifying in opposition to Intro 189A on behalf of

         23  East River Housing Corporation, Hillman Housing

         24  Corporation, Trump Village Section 3, Trump Village

         25  Section 4, 1199 Housing Corporation and Big Six
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          2  Towers. These are co-ops with 8,000 apartments and

          3  buildings located from Grant Street in East Harlem

          4  and Manhattan to Coney Island in Brooklyn to West

          5  Side in Queens. We represent other co-ops with

          6  thousands of units which are also opposed to the

          7  legislation, some of whom will be testifying

          8  separately. Such as Penn South and Chesey with 2,280

          9  apartments and Amalgamated Housing in the Bronx with

         10  1,487 apartments.

         11                 The proposed legislation is to permit

         12  anyone who has kept a dog in the apartment at any

         13  time since July 19, 1995, to bring a dog into the

         14  apartment now and to keep the dog for the duration

         15  of the occupancy, all without any regard to the

         16  wishes or welfare of their neighbors in the co- ops

         17  who oppose having dogs in their buildings. We

         18  believe that this proposed enactment and the 90 day

         19  pet rule to which it is to be appended are fatally

         20  flawed because they fail to distinguish between

         21  rental buildings in which tenants may require

         22  legislative protection of this kind because they

         23  have no power to dictate pet policies and co- ops

         24  which are self- governing democracies in which the

         25  majority opinion of the residents as to the presence
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          2  of dogs should be honored without legislative

          3  interference.

          4                 East River Hillman and the other co-

          5  ops that I mentioned do not permit dogs. That policy

          6  is set forth in their leases. It is publicized to

          7  all new purchasers who in some of the co- ops must

          8  sign separate documents confirming the policy as

          9  well as to existing residents and it reflects the

         10  majority opinion of the cooperators in these

         11  developments, many of whom are seniors. To these

         12  people, the mere presence of dogs is very bothersome

         13  and often frightening. They do not want to have to

         14  get into elevators with dogs or share hallways with

         15  dogs or put up with the noise caused by dogs or the

         16  filth that dogs and their owners leave behind.

         17                 There is no reason why the desires of

         18  these tens of thousands of New York City residents

         19  and voters should be thwarted by this City Council.

         20  The cooperators in the co- op can readily change the

         21  no dog policy if the majority opinion changes by

         22  electing a board that will pursue a new policy or by

         23  amending the corporate documents to permit dogs.

         24  That is the very essence of co- op living. The

         25  proposed legislation completely undermines the
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          2  principals of the co- op by rewarding those who

          3  willfully violate the co- op's no pet policy and

          4  then because they are clever or lucky, beat the 90

          5  day rule and keep a dog in open defiance of all

          6  those cooperators who abide by the rules.

          7                 The proposed legislation makes a bad

          8  situation intolerably worse because as written, it

          9  permits someone to claim to the co- op that he or

         10  she allegedly had a dog many years ago and

         11  therefore, can now years later bring a dog into the

         12  co- op in violation of the co- ops rules. That is

         13  the equivalent of permitting someone to legally

         14  drive in excess of the speed limit because that

         15  person once violated the law and was not caught. The

         16  legislation rewards chicanery and dishonestly and

         17  penalizes in a total arbitrary and capricious

         18  manner, all those many thousands of cooperators who

         19  abide by the rules. As I previously testified before

         20  this body, this entire legislative scheme regarding

         21  dogs was originally enacted for reasons that have

         22  absolutely nothing to do with the proper governance

         23  of co- ops. It was passed because landlords who

         24  wanted to convert rental buildings sought to vacate

         25  and warehouse apartments by using boiler plate no
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          2  pet clauses in rental leases against tenants who

          3  have kept dogs for many years.

          4                 The testimony of the Council Members

          5  at the time the statute was passed stated that the

          6  legislation was designed for the elimination of

          7  evictions who's purpose was to enhance landlord

          8  profits. That situation or the possibility that a

          9  landlord will use a no pet clause to unfairly

         10  increase the rent on a controlled or stabilized unit

         11  have no relevance whatsoever to conditions that an

         12  operating co- op with an elected resident board of

         13  directors.

         14                 In sum, the proposed legislation must

         15  be amended to exclude co- ops from this application.

         16  We're prepared on behalf of our clients to work with

         17  the Council and its staff to craft an exception that

         18  will protect those tenants who truly require

         19  legislative protection while meeting the legitimate

         20  expectations of the thousands of cooperators who

         21  chose not to permit dogs. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         23  Next.

         24                 MS. RASKIN: My name is Susan Raskin.

         25  I'm speaking for my husband, Jack Raskin who's
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          2  Secretary of the Board of Directors of Mutual

          3  Redevelopment Houses, more commonly known as Penn

          4  South. We are a limited equity moderate income co-

          5  operative located in the Chesey section of Manhattan

          6  with 2,820 apartments. We are quite proud of what we

          7  have and want to hold on to what we have.

          8                 We are a democratically run

          9  cooperative where our cooperatives vote by

         10  referendum on all major decisions. Decisions such as

         11  capital improvement, sub metering, co- generation,

         12  replacement of our windows, increase in our equity

         13  when needed and that all important issue on going on

         14  the open market. But we voted not to reconstitute

         15  and to remain a limited equity cooperative by an

         16  overwhelming majority.

         17                 Our cooperatives feel very strongly

         18  on this issue and all the other issues that affect

         19  the quality of life for themselves and their

         20  families. What comes into play once more is the

         21  question of pets and dogs in particular with the

         22  pending Intro 189A, regarding the rights of pet

         23  ownership which deserves a majority of our

         24  cooperatives no end. At Penn South, we voted in the

         25  referundum on this issue back in October 2001 and
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          2  the overwhelming vote was not to permit dog

          3  ownership in our cooperative.

          4                 I spoke now, not only as a Board

          5  Member, but as a senior. I would like to make you

          6  aware that great number of older people living in

          7  Penn South and of their great fears of riding an

          8  elevator with dogs. There is also concern by many

          9  other people who express their fears in this area.

         10  Many of our cooperators moved into Penn South

         11  because of their dog policy. I would like to advise

         12  you that before accepting their apartment at Penn

         13  South, everyone signs an agreement acknowledging

         14  that dogs were not permitted.

         15                 In conclusion, I would urge that the

         16  policy on the right to self- determination be left

         17  to the cooperatives and the right to the democratic

         18  self- governing manner of conducting their business

         19  be recognized. Most importantly, that legislation

         20  Intro No. 189A not be applied to housing

         21  cooperatives. It is expected that those elected

         22  Council Members representing Penn South will support

         23  our position on the right to self- determination

         24  when it comes to dogs.

         25                 MS. LEVINE: My name is Bette LeVine.
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          2  As Coordinator of the Coordinating Council of

          3  Cooperatives, I am here today to represent our

          4  member cooperatives which provide housing to tens of

          5  thousands of families including Mutual Redevelopment

          6  Houses in Manhattan, Amalgamated and Park Reservoir

          7  in the Bronx, Rochdale Village in Queens and

          8  Amalgamated Warbasse in Brooklyn.

          9                 Each of our member co- ops elects

         10  democratically to allow or not allow dogs according

         11  to its by- laws and by the consensus of its

         12  shareholders. It is the belief of the CCC member co-

         13  ops that housing cooperatives should be excluded

         14  from the provisions of pet legislation such as 189A.

         15                 However, if the Council insists on

         16  including cooperatives in this legislation, we would

         17  urge that the law provide clarity regarding the

         18  owner's knowledge of which residents are harboring

         19  pets. In the very least, the law should be clear on

         20  the fact that a dog is being harbored in his or her

         21  apartment and that the 90 day clock should commence

         22  when such notice has been provided to the

         23  cooperatives board and management.

         24                 It is the belief of our members that

         25  cooperatives should continue to act in a purely
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          2  democratic way and excluding co- ops from Intro 189A

          3  will help accomplish that goal. The Coordinating

          4  Council of Cooperatives looks to the City Council to

          5  ensure a cooperative's right to self- government.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 MR. YAKER: My name is Ed Yaker. I'm

          8  President of Amalgamated Houses in the Bronx, a

          9  limited dividend housing co- op that is home to

         10  1,482 families. Amalgamated is democratically self-

         11  governed and has been democratically self- governed

         12  since 1927.

         13                 The vast majority of our cooperators

         14  support a no dog policy in the co- op. If they

         15  didn't, their democratic ability to change that

         16  policy is clear. It only takes 50 co- operators at a

         17  1,500 to put an item on referendum for vote by all

         18  shareholders and the shareholders would have a

         19  chance to vote to change that policy. Simply put, in

         20  granting rights to dog owners, the City Council

         21  rewards people who have violated agreements they

         22  made with their neighbors. Remember, in a co- op,

         23  the owners aren't some strangers far away, it's the

         24  people next door to you. The courts have made a

         25  mockery of the phrases, open and notorious and owner
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          2  knowledge. We have cases where someone testified

          3  that a porter saw them with a dog. They didn't

          4  produce the porter in court. They didn't name the

          5  porter. The Judge said, okay, the owner knew.

          6                 We're a co- op that has over 100

          7  employees. Porters are protected by their union

          8  contract from being required to report pets. They

          9  are not in a decision making position, but the

         10  courts have accepted, you said the porter saw me,

         11  therefore you can keep the pet. The legal safeguards

         12  against irresponsible pet owners are useless. I see

         13  that on Guivenere Avenue (phonetic) when I walk down

         14  the street. Most of the pet owners here, I believe,

         15  are probably responsible people. They cared enough

         16  to come out today. They should have as neighbors

         17  some of the irresponsible pet owners that exist in

         18  this City.

         19                 What we ask is first, exclude

         20  cooperators from 189A. If not, if you insist on

         21  going forward, at a very minimum insure that owner

         22  knowledge means owner knowledge and put the burden

         23  on the dog owner to advise the co- op in writing

         24  that they are harboring a pet and start the 90 day

         25  clock from the time the owner truly has knowledge
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          2  that a pet is in the house.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          4  very much. Do we have any questions? James Oddo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: In addition to

          6  the porter example that you used, who else would

          7  fall within that definition as the courts have read

          8  it in terms of who is an actual agent of the owner?

          9  Who else could fall into that?

         10                 MR. YAKER: We had a case where a

         11  contractor was considered an agent of the owner. We

         12  have our own staff of over 100 employees. We have a

         13  manager. And some contractor who may have been

         14  working on a roof, wasn't a co- op employee, saw the

         15  dog and the court accepted it. We would like it to

         16  be the general manager or the president of board of

         17  directors, the board as a whole, by written notice.

         18  Because those are the decision makers. A porter

         19  isn't a decision maker. A porter by union contract

         20  could say, yes, I saw the dog. I didn't even tell

         21  the manager. He's not required to by law or by union

         22  contract. We're in a position where the courts are

         23  saying the owner knows when the people who can

         24  really act for the owner don't know.

         25                 MR. ODDO: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do we have

          3  any other questions? No. Council Member Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm sorry, I'm

          5  unclear. What are you saying exactly that you want

          6  the owner or the manager to be the people that are

          7  reported too?

          8                 MR. YAKER: We'd like written notice

          9  to either the general manager or to the board of

         10  directors from the pet owner. Because what we find

         11  is and I understand the position that if the owner's

         12  way of knowledge waived enforcement, but the owner

         13  doesn't always know or if you take a case -- my co-

         14  op is 1,500 families. Rochdale Village is 6,000

         15  families. Any employee who knows represents the

         16  owner? That doesn't make sense. Because that

         17  employee can't call the lawyer or may not want to.

         18  They may have their own agenda. So it has to be the

         19  person who truly represents the co- op in a business

         20  sense who has to have knowledge that the person is

         21  harboring a pet.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So you're

         23  saying that the tenants should notify the proper

         24  authorities?

         25                 MR. YAKER: Right, right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It should be

          3  the tenants responsibility --

          4                 MR. YAKER: Right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: -- From the

          6  first day that they bring the animal in.

          7                 MR. YAKER: And then the owner has

          8  knowledge and if the 90 day clock starts, then the

          9  owner would be waiving it. But we're finding cases,

         10  I heard stories where someone produces a receipt

         11  from the pet store that that's the day I bought it

         12  with no evidence that the owner knew they bought it

         13  or harbored it then and the courts have taken it to

         14  mean owner knowledge. If you go forward with this

         15  and if you don't exclude co- ops, let's be clear

         16  that the owner knows.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         18  Thank you, Madam Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         20  Member Katz.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Hi, and thank

         22  you for your time once again. I feel like this is

         23  dj vu because we went through this the last time

         24  and I guess for the record, what you're saying, I

         25  want to make sure I put on the record what my
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          2  thoughts are on this. My understanding from your

          3  testimony is that the issue truly that the co- op

          4  and condos are interested in is how notice is deemed

          5  for the first three months of the tenancy.

          6                 MR. YAKER: Well, our real issue is

          7  exclusion.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          9                 MR. YAKER: But if we can't get that,

         10  we're saying at a very minimum, let's make owner

         11  knowledge real.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Understanding

         13  that today's legislation, 189A basically deals with

         14  if a waiver already exists, which is not opening up

         15  the original waiver requirements and open and

         16  notorious and notice and all of that, if a waiver

         17  exists already that that waiver exists with the

         18  occupant of the building as opposed to the pet. But

         19  your issue truly is how that waiver comes about.

         20                 MR. GOODMAN: There's another point

         21  regarding the proposed legislation. The way its

         22  written, it says that anyone who had a pet at any

         23  time since 1995 can now bring a pet into the co- op

         24  which means somebody came come to the co- op and

         25  say, gee, six years ago I had a pet for 90 days. The
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          2  pet hasn't been around for six years, but since I

          3  had it then, I can bring it in now and have it

          4  forever. If you want to talk about kind of silly

          5  notions of notice, that is about as far out as you

          6  can get. It is impossible for the co- op to even

          7  think about contesting that. This person will

          8  testify in court because people will go to extremes

          9  to bring a pet in. And how in the world is the co-

         10  op suppose to even respond to that. It takes a

         11  situation as Mr. Yaker said that is impossible now

         12  and makes it completely intolerable and the

         13  legislation simply has not been thought through. It

         14  is really defective.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: With all due

         16  respect to you, the idea that after so many years,

         17  whether you agree or disagree that very smart minds

         18  have not thought it through, I think is something

         19  that you may want to rephrase at some point. But I

         20  think at this point, just to make it clear for the

         21  record, the only reason that the 1995 date is in is

         22  that is when the court interprets it, the waiver to

         23  die with the pet. In order for someone to replace

         24  that pet, there would still need very valid proof

         25  that there was a waiver in existence which goes back
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          2  to the original conversation that you and I had. I

          3  just wanted to place on the record, Madam Chair.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          6  Any other questions? Thank you, gentlemen and

          7  ladies. The next folks we have in a panel are

          8  Leyland Sturm, Gary Kaskel, Jill and Ronald Ragovin,

          9  one of whom will speak and Darryl Vernon. Decide who

         10  wants to speak first, introduce yourself and

         11  proceed.

         12                 MR. STURM:  Thank you Chairwoman for

         13  having us here today. Before I briefly go into what

         14  I want to discuss, I presume there is a quorum here

         15  today. Is that correct?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes, there

         17  is.

         18                 MR. STURM: Also, I've heard there has

         19  been phone calls made late last night that we don't

         20  know too much about that this vote will be carried

         21  over into the first of the year. There has been

         22  several Council Members who changed their votes, et

         23  cetera, et cetera. Are you aware --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Are you

         25  prepared to testify today on behalf of the
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          2  legislation? The questions usually go this and that

          3  way. Are you here to testify?

          4                 MR. STURM: Yes, I'm all set.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. Why

          6  don't you start because your three minutes are

          7  already ticking away.

          8                 MR. STURM: Good. Thank you. I want to

          9  thank you again. Thank you. First, I would like to

         10  point out that I'm from Connecticut and my family

         11  has had the opportunity to breed dogs for over 30

         12  years. We love dogs very much and even though at the

         13  present time, I do not have one in the City, I do

         14  have a great deal of experience with dogs. Not only

         15  did we breed them and sale them, but we kept a log

         16  of all the people who bought dogs from our kennel. I

         17  have found that dogs were great up lift to people

         18  who have had depression. It also gave these people

         19  the ambition to live longer and stay healthier. It

         20  all boils down to a psychological uplift. Having

         21  pets living in apartments has the ability to teach

         22  younger children what responsibility is all about.

         23                 Why after many, many years are we

         24  going in an very unhappy direction where pets cannot

         25  be grandfathered. People are getting older and many
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          2  of them have lost their loves one. The only thing

          3  that will help them be happy is to have a pet. I

          4  live in a Glenwood building for more than 20 years

          5  and at the present time, I will take a guess that

          6  there are at least 60 to 70 people who are over 65

          7  years old. Why should my landlord be able to deny

          8  these people what little happiness they have left in

          9  life. It's a shame when the doorman has to act like

         10  a policeman. If he sees a dog that he doesn't

         11  recognize, he must call management immediately.

         12                 My building was built in 1972. Pets

         13  are always permitted in the building in the past.

         14  Why is my landlord now enforcing a no pet rule? A

         15  sad thing happened several weeks ago when I met one

         16  of my old time neighbors from the building, a mother

         17  and two daughters and she told me she was forced to

         18  move out because they bought a new dog to replace

         19  the one that passed away. That is why we are here

         20  today.

         21                 Last month, President Bush gave his

         22  wife, Laura, a beautiful little puppy for her

         23  birthday to join forces with their other dog. If

         24  dogs can live in the White House, why can't they

         25  live in my house. I urge you to pass this bill and I
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          2  thank you for your time.

          3                 MR. KASKEL: Good morning. I'm Gary

          4  Kaskel, the President of United Action for Animals.

          5  We have membership in all five boroughs of the City.

          6  I'm also a life- long resident of Manhattan and I'd

          7  like to answer a few things that were stated today

          8  by members of the representing co- op boards. These

          9  people talk about democracy and self- rule. I'd like

         10  to remind the members of this board about the days

         11  in which self- rule allowed things like slavery and

         12  other oppressive kinds of legal laws to exist on the

         13  books. It didn't make it right then and I say that

         14  self- rule and democracy used in this context is the

         15  same kind of code word as states rights was when the

         16  southerns used it in the '60's trying to oppress the

         17  civil rights movement. It's the same kind rhetoric.

         18                 They can't ban children from co- ops.

         19  They can't ban women wearing red framed eye glasses

         20  because some people are offended that women who wear

         21  red framed eye glasses. So why should they be able

         22  to ban pets? This is a City that is rapidly becoming

         23  governed by complainers. If you complain about

         24  anything loud enough, suddenly you get your way.

         25  It's codified by an official body. We have the
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          2  complainers making the rules for everybody else in

          3  the City. That is not a democratic and a free way to

          4  live. It impugns on all the other people who want to

          5  have their freedoms to have their life and liberty

          6  to live in their own lifestyle.

          7                 We get calls at United Action for

          8  Animals every month from people having pets in

          9  housing issues, getting eviction proceedings because

         10  they either bought a new pet or replaced a dead one.

         11  And I can you it is heart wrenching and

         12  heartbreaking. Madam Chairman, at the last hearing,

         13  made a comment after I left that concerns me

         14  greatly. And you said, I believe, I wasn't in the

         15  room, but I was told that you said you had some

         16  reservations about rewarding people who break the

         17  law.

         18                 Madam, you need to be advised that

         19  pet owners are not criminals. They are not breaking

         20  the law by violating a lease. A lease is a civil

         21  contract. You're not breaking the law when you

         22  violate a lease. You are violating a civil contract.

         23  There is a big difference. A big difference.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Which as far

         25  as I'm concerned is a legal document. Is a contract
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          2  not a binding legal document?

          3                 MR. KASKEL: Yes, but it's not a law.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: For what?

          5                 MR. KASKEL: So what, there's a big

          6  difference.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No, that is

          8  the difference.

          9                 MR. KASKEL: No, that's a very

         10  prejudicial statement.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I will not

         12  get into a discussion with you --

         13                 MR. KASKEL: You don't have too. I'm

         14  just stating for the record that that statement you

         15  made --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You can state

         17  whatever you want.

         18                 MR. KASKEL: -- Is very prejudicial.

         19  And as far as I'm concerned, everybody in this

         20  Committee, if anybody votes against this law during

         21  the holiday season, you're nothing but a grinch.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I suggest

         23  that we kept the decorum. Next. Are you next? Go

         24  ahead. Just state your name.

         25                 MR. VERNON: Sure. My name is Darryl
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          2  Vernon from Vernon & Geinsburg (phonetic). Honorable

          3  members of the Council, thank you for hearing us

          4  today. I have testified before and I am testifying

          5  today also on behalf of the Association of the City

          6  of the Bar of New York and on behalf of the

          7  Committee for Legal Issues pertaining to animals.

          8                 As part of our practice for roughly

          9  the past two decades, we have been representing

         10  people with pets in their homes. That includes rent

         11  regulated apartments. That includes co- ops; that

         12  includes condominiums. We have represented people

         13  who are elderly, who are disabled, who are living

         14  alone, who have kids learning responsibility. Why do

         15  we defend so many cases and we have had countless,

         16  countless cases over the years? Let me at least say

         17  some of the reasons we do not.

         18                 One is not that there is an issue of

         19  nuisance or there is an issue of a problem caused by

         20  dogs in a building. That accounts for a very small

         21  percentage of the cases we see and when those cases

         22  do exist, they are still allowed even under this

         23  law. What these cases are caused by, by and large in

         24  rent regulated apartments is the need and desire for

         25  owners to make more money by raising rents. With the

                                                            38

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  issues of luxury deregulation that exists and the

          3  ability to increase rents significantly if tenants

          4  are evicted from their apartments, we see cases

          5  brought for this reason. Not because there is any

          6  real complaint about a tenant having a pet.

          7                 In co- ops, the motivations are

          8  different. We see boards who want to exercise their

          9  whim over either a majority of the shareholders or a

         10  minority. But regardless, what you end up with is a

         11  tyranny of a board and in some cases a tyranny of

         12  the majority in co- ops prohibiting pets where many

         13  people want the pets in the building.

         14                 I've had cases where co- ops have

         15  acted more maliciously than rent regulated tenants

         16  to the point of withholding services. Should I stop?

         17  I have had cases where co- ops have withheld

         18  services when --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Let's have

         20  them continue and them we will have some questions

         21  that you can ask, James. Excuse me, excuse me. Have

         22  you finished?

         23                 MR. VERNON: No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Why don't you

         25  just finish?
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          2                 MR. VERNON: Sure. I will wrap it up.

          3  I have had cases where tenants, for example, in

          4  Stuyvesant Town which is a very large community have

          5  had a pet for a decade. That pet goes and Stuyvesant

          6  suddenly does not want to allow another pet. Why?

          7  Because now in Stuyvesant Town, the market rents

          8  exceed the rent regulated rents by two or three

          9  times easily. So they try to prohibit the next pet

         10  knowing that at that point that tenant is not going

         11  to be able to remain without a pet after growing so

         12  in love with the pet for so many years. That's why

         13  this is a serious problem. And the need to be able

         14  to replace is very important. If I can answer any

         15  questions because I have litigated these cases for

         16  very long, I'd be glad to try to do that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. Thank

         18  you. Do you want to move closer to the table and put

         19  a mic up close to you?

         20                 MS. RAGOVIN: Hi, happy holidays. My

         21  name is Jill Ragovin. My husband is right here with

         22  me, Ronald. We've lived in our apartment for 28

         23  years --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Did you say

         25  your name?
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          2                 MS. RAGOVIN: Jill Ragovin.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          4                 MS. RAGOVIN: And my husband Ronald is

          5  right here. We've lived in our building, 145 East

          6  27th Street for 28 years. And we've had a pet for 19

          7  of which we've had two pets. Our last one which was

          8  14 years. We raised twin boys, but unfortunately we

          9  lost one twin in 1996 at the age of 17 in a roller

         10  blading accident. Our American pet Eskimo, Lulu,

         11  helped us through this horrible event so we could

         12  give our other son the attention he needed. It was

         13  devastating.

         14                 Lulu helped us as a family get

         15  through these most difficult times because she was

         16  his best friend and mine. We walked. She kept my

         17  mind together so we could also take care of our

         18  lives, our other child and our regular functions.

         19  Lulu passed away last August at 14 and I was again

         20  devastated. We all were. It was like a hole in our

         21  heart. It was like a stab in our backs. We didn't

         22  know what to do. I was lost. I was miserable. You

         23  couldn't even talk to me. I can't replace my son who

         24  was always and will be forever and ever a part of

         25  our lives. You can't replace a child, but you can
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          2  replace a pet that gives us piece of mind.

          3                 This bill is very important to us and

          4  as well as everybody else in New York that's lost a

          5  pet, there is just nothing like them. They are your

          6  rock. They're everything. I've also replaced her

          7  indirectly with another one; looks just like her as

          8  everybody can see. Her name is Lexie, same kind of

          9  dog. But she is not with me. She's with my son. And

         10  he's been great. We have her on weekends. But I

         11  can't bring her home. I want her home now. She's

         12  going to be a year old. I want her with. She's my

         13  dog, not my son's even though he loves her. She

         14  doesn't belong with him, she belongs with us. Please

         15  pass this and make us all happy especially for the

         16  holidays. Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you. We

         18  have questions. Council Member Oddo, please.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I just have to

         20  go on the record what I just said in ear shot, I

         21  think that this witness' reference to slavery and

         22  making any analogy and rhetoric or anything is

         23  absolutely reprehensible and absolutely bizarre. I

         24  have to tell you that he's been here before and

         25  every cause that you advocate you end up hurting.
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          2  When I think about your testimony and I compare it

          3  to how classy the Max's are and some of the other

          4  folks, you really end up hurting the cause. I would

          5  shutter to think if somebody on this side of the

          6  table made a ridiculous comment like that. I tell

          7  you that you end up hurting your own cause.

          8                 MR. KASKEL: Mr. Oddo --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I think it

         10  should be on the record and I think it's better

         11  remarkable that I'm only the member that found that

         12  statement to be absolutely bizarre.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No, you're

         14  not the only member.

         15                 MR. KASKEL: Mr. Oddo, I wear your

         16  comments as a badge of honor. Because you have no

         17  respect in my opinion based on your previous record.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: You are an

         19  amazing character who I absolutely right now sinking

         20  this bill almost single handedly.

         21                 MR. KASKEL: What does that say about

         22  democracy of one member can sink a bill based on the

         23  comments of one witness?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: In my book,

         25  that is democracy.

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 MR. KASKEL: That's outrageous. This

          3  is about democracy not about slavery, sir. This is

          4  about how democracy works in a free society.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. That's

          6  the end of that. You've all made your point. Council

          7  Member Comrie.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just want to

          9  say that I support Jimmy's Oddo statement in this

         10  and he's not alone in his thought. I think the whole

         11  panel shook their heads on your statement that it

         12  was a totally ridiculous analogy. Let's stick to the

         13  facts here. That's all we need to talk about. I

         14  agree with him. You're damaging your cause. And

         15  you're not helping the people that are here for the

         16  right reasons. If those are the reasons that you

         17  feel that this bill needs to be passed, there is no

         18  reason for us to legislate this. Because this is

         19  supposedly a democratic society. A society that has

         20  care and concern for people. A society that cares

         21  about its elderly or treat its elderly with respect.

         22  That is people are being respectful of their

         23  neighbors, they would give proper notice. But you

         24  don't want to deal with those issues. You just want

         25  to deal with what you want. And you want to --
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          2                 MR. KASKEL: No, sir, that's not

          3  correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: -- Cope what

          5  you want in the name of democracy. I find it

          6  personally offensive if the other person that was

          7  here said dogs were better than women. That's

          8  ridiculous. If we said anything like that, we'd be

          9  vilified and the newspapers would be all over us.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I believe it.

         11                 MR. KASKEL: Let's take a vote pretty

         12  soon, will you please.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We're having a

         14  hearing.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Excuse me.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We're having a

         17  hearing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Excuse me.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We've been

         20  working on this issue back and forth. I give the

         21  person that put the bill together every credit for

         22  trying to be concerned about the compassionate

         23  people and the people that are in need. But you're

         24  taking this to an extreme to people that are in need

         25  to people that just want. That's a problem.
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          2                 MR. KASKEL: May I respond very

          3  briefly?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. This is

          5  ended. Council Member Avella has something to say.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I just want to

          7  join with my colleagues, Comrie and Oddo in their

          8  comments about the testimony. You know, we allow

          9  people to come and give testimony and say what they

         10  believe. But this is the House of the City in New

         11  York. We are elected representatives. This is your

         12  House. And I think people when they testify should

         13  show some respect to the institution. I also want to

         14  comment on something that was said by the first

         15  speaker alleging some sort of conspiracy, I guess,

         16  that over night people's vote change place. For the

         17  record, nobody has voted on this yet. So it is

         18  impossible --

         19                 MR. STURM: I didn't --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: He's

         21  speaking. He has the floor.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: For the

         23  record, nobody has voted on this. So it is

         24  impossible for anybody to have changed their vote.

         25  If we do have a vote, it will be now and that will
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          2  be the first vote on this item.

          3                 MR. STURM: This is two and half years

          4  of doing this. I want to leave.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Be my guest.

          6  There's the door. Does anyone else have a question

          7  for these two gentlemen? Okay. You're dismissed.

          8  Thank you. Mary Ann Rothman, Heschy Jacobs. I don't

          9  know if I did the first name right. Is that right?

         10  Do you know who the other person is? Heschy Jacobs?

         11  Is that a male or female? Female. A male. Mr.

         12  Jacobs? Mr. Jacobs? He's not here. Okay. You're on

         13  your own.

         14                 MS. ROTHMAN: I'm on my own. Good

         15  afternoon, Council Members, Madam Chair. Thank you

         16  for the opportunity to address you today. I'm Mary

         17  Ann Rothman. I'm the Executive Director of the

         18  Council of New York Cooperatives and Condominiums

         19  which is a membership organization for housing

         20  cooperatives and condominiums in the New York area.

         21  We have about 2,200 members that are the homes of

         22  some 200,000 New York families.

         23                 I speak today as I have in the past

         24  in opposition to Intro 189A. Many of the housing

         25  cooperatives and condominiums that are members of my
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          2  organization including the building I live in are

          3  pet friendly, are happy to welcome pets. But some of

          4  our member buildings, specifically set rules that

          5  exclude pets because that is the will of the

          6  majority in those buildings. Despite no pet rules,

          7  the management and directors of those buildings have

          8  to be constantly vigilant because the pet law

          9  enables people who were informed of the rules when

         10  they bought into the co- op to cheat, to break the

         11  rules by "openly harboring a pet."

         12                 I can only second everything that was

         13  said by the co- op panel that preceded me. It's

         14  difficult to understand what is meant by openly

         15  harboring a pet. I would certainly hope to see the

         16  pet law itself revisited so that notice is required

         17  so that co- op boards and building owners have an

         18  opportunity to know what pets is coming in; what

         19  breed of pet; what kind of pet and to actually be

         20  able to rule on that.

         21                 Intro 189A perpetuates exactly what

         22  the Chairman has talked about. It rewards people for

         23  having broken the rules. I would again strongly urge

         24  that this bill, this Intro not be passed and that in

         25  looking into the ownership of pets and allowing of
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          2  pets in buildings that we look to the needs of all

          3  people. I'm also concerned about changing a

          4  succession of animals. The family that has a tiny

          5  poodle could turn up with a pit bull on the next

          6  round. I would really suggest if you must legislate

          7  this that you look into careful notification and a

          8  real regard for the types of animals. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you. Do

         10  we have any questions for Ms. Rothman? I think

         11  Council Member Eva Moskowitz is in back of me. Are

         12  you there? She is the sponsor of the bill that we're

         13  not testifying on today which is Proposed Intro No.

         14  114A. She would just like to make a few comments on

         15  the legislation. Council Member Moskowitz.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

         17  Madam Chair, for your assistance and for the

         18  hearings you've held on this bill. This is really a

         19  very, very simple bill. The fine schedule has not

         20  been updated since 1982. There are a small number of

         21  landlords in this City who unfortunately repeatedly

         22  have not provided for their basic responsibilities

         23  including heat and hot water. Because of the lack of

         24  update, the City has been unable to force these

         25  landlords to provide what they should be providing
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          2  and this bill simply updates the fine schedule. I

          3  think it's very appropriate that we're doing this at

          4  the beginning of the cold weather since this is

          5  really becomes a problem in January, February and

          6  March for tenants who are abandoned by their

          7  landlords. Thank you, Madam Chair, for your efforts

          8  on behalf of this importance piece of legislation.

          9  Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you. We

         11  are trying to get all the members in here to vote.

         12  I'm going to call the next panel. While we're

         13  getting ready to vote, the next panel can come up

         14  and sit there and then we'll vote. Maureen Moore,

         15  Elinor Molbegott, Diane West and we might as well

         16  make this all females, Joyce Friedman. So if you

         17  don't mind, you just kind of hang out until we do

         18  this vote. We have two bills that we're voting on

         19  today. But we're going to vote separately on each

         20  bill. We still expect, I think, two more members.

         21  We'll vote first on proposed Intro 114A, which is

         22  what we call the Heat and Water Bill.

         23                 COUNSEL CLERK: Proposed Intro 114- A.

         24  Council Member Rivera.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL CLERK: Reyna.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I vote aye.

          4                 COUNSEL CLERK: Avella.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye.

          6                 COUNSEL CLERK: Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I want to

          8  congratulate -- permission to explain my vote?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I want to

         11  congratulate Council Member Moskowitz who I believe

         12  took over five years to get this bill to the floor.

         13  I just want to make that five- year point because

         14  she had to do a lot to get this bill amended and

         15  made it proper so that it would be done in a

         16  language and amendable to all parties. I just want

         17  to congratulate her on her five- year effort to get

         18  the bill right. I vote aye.

         19                 COUNSEL CLERK: Jackson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL CLERK: Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL CLERK: Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         25                 COUNSEL CLERK: James.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I vote aye.

          3                 COUNSEL CLERK: Provenzano.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I also would

          5  like to commend Council Member Moskowitz. A lot of

          6  work was done on this bill after the first hearing

          7  and I'm also happy that we're able to get in enacted

          8  so that it will go into effect in this heating

          9  season. I vote yes.

         10                 COUNSEL CLERK: By a vote of eight in

         11  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         12  abstentions, Proposed Intro 114- A is adopted. The

         13  vote will be open by request of the Chair. Proposed

         14  Intro 189- A. Council Member Rivera.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         16  much. Madam Chair, may I please be excused to

         17  explain my vote?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         20  much. This has been obviously something that has

         21  been up for discussion for quite some time here in

         22  City Hall and we've heard from both sides giving

         23  their opposing views and proponents that have come

         24  to the floor to state why they are in favor of this

         25  bill. I have had several conversations with both
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          2  sides and I've actually had conversations where I

          3  live. I actually live in a cooperative building

          4  where the board does have the no pet clause and

          5  where the tenants are the ones that have voted for

          6  such a clause. With that being said, I believe there

          7  has to be a balance that needs to be reached between

          8  pet owners and the co- op boards which are governed

          9  by the residents that have a no pet policy. While I

         10  can appreciate the value of a pet may have for the

         11  owners, I can also appreciate the need for autonomy

         12  for the cooperative board which again are governed

         13  by the residents.

         14                 We have to mindful that there are

         15  tenants who may not want pets in their buildings.

         16  Since the cooperatives are governed by the residents

         17  themselves, I believe its nicely better avenue for

         18  the tenants that may have pets to go ahead and lobby

         19  the actual tenants that live within their building

         20  to try to change the rules opposed to come here into

         21  City Hall to try to get us to circumvent the

         22  democratic process that the cooperatives already

         23  have in place. I think that we have to be very

         24  mindful of the fact that we in certain cases while

         25  we may have jurisdiction, we maybe overstepping our
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          2  bounds in terms of infringing on other governing

          3  body rights and I think that we have to be extremely

          4  mindful to that.

          5                 I think that I've heard a lot of the

          6  arguments for and against it and I think that we

          7  have to really take consideration into the fact

          8  about the notification to the actual board and to

          9  the landlords so that way we are clear in terms of

         10  who needs to be notified. And we have to take into

         11  consideration also the pets owners that may won. I

         12  understand that we have a federal law that's in

         13  effect that allows for people to have disabilities

         14  to maintain pets and that should be a given. But in

         15  this case, I think that we have to be mindful to the

         16  governing bodies of the cooperatives and that's why

         17  I have to vote no on this bill. Thank you very much.

         18                 COUNSEL CLERK: Jackson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on both,

         20  189A and 114A. Madam Chair, I would like to excuse.

         21  I'm co- chairing the meeting next door. I have to

         22  chair that meeting.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         25                 COUNSEL CLERK: Reyna.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I vote aye.

          3                 COUNSEL CLERK: Avella.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Madam Chair,

          5  may I have a few moments to explain my vote?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Certainly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I was

          8  originally a sponsor of this bill. But I took my

          9  name off of it because of some of the concerns that

         10  have been mentioned here and in the previous

         11  hearings. I would love to vote for this bill. I

         12  support the concept. But in my opinion, there has

         13  been no real discussion with co- ops and

         14  condominiums and they are self- governing bodies. I

         15  mentioned this six months ago. It is unfortunate

         16  that we are at six months later and we're still at

         17  the same spot we were then. Co- ops and condominiums

         18  have a right to determine their own destiny.

         19                 I think that's something we should

         20  include. I urge both sides in this room to come

         21  together and see if a compromise can't be worked

         22  out. I think it can be. It's unfortunate that this

         23  issue seems to have become a political football in

         24  how can we get this passed without working together.

         25  I would love to support this bill. We're just not
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          2  there yet. So, unfortunately, I have to vote no.

          3                 COUNSEL CLERK: Brewer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I want to vote

          5  yes on 114A and yes on 189A. I know that on the

          6  issue of the pets that there is some controversy.

          7  However, regarding co- ops and condominiums, yes,

          8  they certainly are self- governing. But there is

          9  always the issue of at least in my district, there

         10  are stabilized and renters within co- ops who don't

         11  necessarily have a lot of say about the procedures

         12  for that particular building. Then there is always

         13  at least on the West Side, I don't know about any

         14  place else, we always have controversy and

         15  discussion. Nothing is every unilateral.

         16                 The fact of the matter is that where

         17  there is this kind of discussion, I think Melinda

         18  Katz has done a great job on trying to make some

         19  changes between 189 and 189A where some of these

         20  issues are addressed. I am not a pet owner. But I

         21  understand that in many cases, pets are the

         22  equivalent of something that's very personal and

         23  very special. This bill does only talk about

         24  allowing pets when there was a previous species.

         25  With that in mind, I vote aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL CLERK: Comrie.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'd like to

          4  congratulate Council Member Katz on her efforts

          5  regarding this bill; the Chair, Council Member

          6  Provenzano and all of the staff at Housing and

          7  Buildings Committee. I've listened to a lot of the

          8  testimony on both sides. I've spoken to all sides on

          9  this issue. But it still comes down to me that and

         10  I've listened to some amazing testimony today that

         11  only really solidifies in my mind that this is the

         12  interest of a few over the interest of the many. I

         13  believe in animals. I believe in the powers of dogs

         14  helping people. I believe that if sick or infirm

         15  people need to have animal companionship that that

         16  could be worked out with the tenants and the

         17  neighbors around them.

         18                 I don't see how in a compassionate

         19  City, a City that is concerned about hawks and

         20  everything else that they can't figure out a way to

         21  negotiate things that can help people that are in

         22  need. Today's testimony went beyond need. It went

         23  into want. It went into the desires of the few over

         24  the desires of the many. This bill can still allow

         25  an individual to come up and skirt what they've
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          2  signed as a testimony, has a lease, an agreement and

          3  a promise that they've made to the landlord or to

          4  the owner that they're going to follow the terms of

          5  the lease. I understand the needs of the people that

          6  they want to have animals and that they need

          7  animals. I think that we need to focus on those

          8  people that need animals for medical or health

          9  reasons as opposed to people that want animals and

         10  want to impose their wills on the rest of the people

         11  in the building.

         12                 I think that this bill still does not

         13  address that. I agree with Council Member Rivera and

         14  Council Member Avella regarding the co- ops and

         15  condos. I find it interesting that people could

         16  relate democracy and civil rights to pet ownership.

         17  I'm still amazed by that. I'll be talking about that

         18  for days because the things that people want to do

         19  in the name of democracy or the things that people

         20  don't want to do in the name of democracy are

         21  totally up to the individual on the personal

         22  subject. While I'd like to vote for this bill to try

         23  to help people, I think that this bill goes too far

         24  and hurts the many. I have to vote no. I'm sorry

         25  Council Member Katz. You've done a lot of work on
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          2  this issue, I think that this bill needs a lot of

          3  work before it goes to the full body to protect all

          4  of those people who have true interest and not

          5  people who are just trying politicize this issue for

          6  their own personal passions. Thank you.

          7                 COUNSEL CLERK: Katz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can I explain my

          9  vote?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Of course.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: This has been a

         12  very long time coming to this. With due respect to

         13  some of my colleagues and also some folks out there,

         14  the discussions that have taken place regarding this

         15  piece of legislation is probably more public, more

         16  inclusive, more factual, more detail oriented than

         17  practically anything else that I've been personally

         18  involved with; probably except for some of the land

         19  use issues that do get extremely detailed oriented.

         20  There is a lot of personal differences among a lot

         21  of folks. That's New York. That's what we're about.

         22  Some things I agree with, some things I

         23  wholeheartedly don't agree with. But the fact of the

         24  matter is, the only issue on the table today is who

         25  you make your contract with. You make a lease with a
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          2  dog? You make a lease with a cat? No. You make a

          3  lease with that tenant that is in the apartment. If

          4  a landlord waives his right to evict you based on

          5  that pet, that waiver is with the tenant. That

          6  waiver is with the landlord. That waiver doesn't die

          7  when the pet dies.

          8                 This is a bill so that you can

          9  replace an animal that you have a waiver and the

         10  reason that you're allowed to have that pet is

         11  because of the waiver in the contract. That is all

         12  this is about. The reason co- ops and condos are not

         13  mentioned in this bill is because that's not what

         14  this bill is about. It is not about the first three

         15  months. It is not about graining the waiver. It is

         16  not about what the standards and criteria are in

         17  order to get that waiver. It is about once you have

         18  the waiver, who the waiver is with. That is all this

         19  bill is.

         20                 I ask my colleagues and I ask anyone

         21  in the audience here that is watching to please keep

         22  that in mind. I think we've done an excellent job

         23  getting here today. I think we obviously have a lot

         24  more work to do. And that's okay. Because we are who

         25  we are and we will keep on top of it until we
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          2  actually have this right which I do believe we

          3  deserve put into law. I want to thank those

          4  advocates that have been so great and so helpful

          5  here today. I vote aye.

          6                 COUNSEL CLERK: James.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I vote aye in

          8  support of all the senior citizens and the

          9  individuals who are infirmed and ill in the City of

         10  New York who basically animals have served as a

         11  companion to each and every one of them. I support

         12  this bill and I support Councilwoman Katz and want

         13  to congratulate her for all that she's done and for

         14  all the attacks that you've been subjected to and

         15  for all the comments that have been made here today.

         16  Again, I vote aye on this bill.

         17                 COUNSEL CLERK: Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: May I be

         19  temporarily excused to explain my vote?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I am a dog owner

         22  and a condo owner. I bought my dog in January of

         23  2002. In March of that year, my father got real sick

         24  and lost his right leg below his knee. My dog has

         25  become his best friend aside from my mother.
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          2  Although, many times he gets along a lot better with

          3  the dog than my mother. I have seen first hand what

          4  the study show and say about what dogs can do for

          5  the human spirit. I think that this bill at its

          6  essence for me at least, is a simple way to make

          7  some folks life a little better.

          8                 I think this Council has to do with

          9  this bill what we always do and that's try to be

         10  fair. Try to be fair to the dog owners, to the pet

         11  owners, but also to be fair to the people who live

         12  in those buildings and yes, yes, we shouldn't be

         13  ashamed to say it. Let's be fair to the landlords as

         14  well. If I looked at this issue completely

         15  intellectually and not emotionally, which I'm not

         16  capable of doing, I think Ed Yaker's testimony was

         17  most compelling. Clearly, this Council has a

         18  responsible to revisit the issues that he talked

         19  about. The exclusion of co- ops and condos, the fact

         20  that we want true; everyone should want true owner

         21  knowledge. And we really should restrict who an

         22  agent is to the board and the general managers.

         23  That's fairness.

         24                 I am probably not going to do what's

         25  the best government because I think the best
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          2  government should be voting no and encouraging my

          3  colleagues to vote no, send this bill back and get

          4  those assurances a head of time. But I'm not going

          5  to do that. I'm going to give in to my emotion and

          6  say, let's send some people the right message and

          7  allow them some happiness. I'm going to vote yes. I

          8  strongly encourage the leadership of this body to

          9  live up to the commitments that are made, clearly

         10  the need to go back and revisit the issues of co-

         11  ops and condos is there. They clapped. So they must

         12  have heard that I said I voted yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: They're not

         14  suppose to clap. They're going to get their big clap

         15  at the end.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I'm not

         17  encouraging them to clap.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Their great

         19  big clap at the end.

         20                 COUNSEL CLERK: Fidler.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Madam

         22  Chairwoman, first may I be permitted to cast the yes

         23  vote on Intro 114?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes, you may.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And may I be
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          2  permitted to explain my vote? I'll get the suspense

          3  out right up front by telling you that based upon

          4  the passion advocacy of Councilwoman Katz, I'm going

          5  to vote first. I will say that and I would say those

          6  people who support this bill ought to carry her out

          7  of this room on their shoulders. Because she has

          8  been a tenacious advocate on  your behalf.

          9                 However, I want very much to be

         10  associated with the comments that I just heard from

         11  Council Member Oddo. I think that we're probably

         12  things a little bit ass backwards by passing a piece

         13  of legislation and then going back and fixing an

         14  underlying problem later when we should probably be

         15  addressing the entire issue simultaneously. I agree

         16  that someone who has had a pet ought to be able to

         17  keep that pet or continue to have a pet if they had

         18  the right to have a pet even if that pet should pass

         19  away. The right should go with the tenancy not with

         20  the animal. I agree with that.

         21                 However, the open and notorious

         22  provisions, the right of co- ops and condos to

         23  govern themselves, I think are issues that need to

         24  be addressed. I have also heard the promise of the

         25  leadership of this Council that those issues are
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          2  going to be addressed. And they are going to be

          3  addressed promptly, quickly, effectively and fully.

          4  With that in mind, because of the high regard in

          5  which I hold the bill sponsor, I am voting yes.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 COUNSEL CLERK: Provenzano.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I agree with

          9  most of my colleagues that this was a little bit

         10  tough for me. Only in that I actually met some nice

         11  folks while this was going on. I kind of developed a

         12  little e- mail stuff back and forth with some of the

         13  seniors and I really meet some lovely people and

         14  understand their concerns. That was little a bit

         15  offset by some of the folks that we had here today

         16  who I felt had quite a lack of respect for all the

         17  hard work that goes into these kinds of things, for

         18  the hours and hours and hours that are spent having

         19  these hearings. When folks kind of look at us and

         20  turn up their nose and make allegations, that really

         21  doesn't sit well for those of us who sit here. I'm

         22  quite disappointed in those folks.

         23                 Again, I have lots of problems with

         24  this legislation. As you know, I've said it in the

         25  past, I am an animal lover. I've had cats, dogs,
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          2  ducks, rabbits, snakes, gone through the whole

          3  gambit. And I certainly sympathized with those

          4  people who really feel that they need pets in their

          5  lives. But I think that this bill as it exists

          6  today, presents a myriad of problems and inequities.

          7  I was hoping that as we were debating it, going it

          8  over, these kinds of things would be fixed. But they

          9  were not. As one of those quite nasty people said,

         10  one of my problem was that my feeling and still is

         11  that we are allowing people who have succeeded in

         12  getting around a binding contract, they have

         13  succeeded in getting around it and we're allowing

         14  them to perpetuate basically a lie. That's my

         15  biggest problem with this.

         16                 I also sympathize with the co- ops

         17  and condo owners. They have their own governing

         18  bodies. They should be able to make their own

         19  regulations. Open and notorious, of course, is one

         20  of the great big issues and I think it needs to be

         21  part of this legislation. Going back ten years I

         22  think is atrocious. Aside from listening to the

         23  folks who tell me how much they need their dogs and

         24  their cats, I also have to listen to seniors,

         25  particularly in my district more so the letters and

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  e- mails that I've gotten from folks in my district,

          3  are seniors who live in a building where they

          4  thought they were safe from, well I guess,

          5  specifically dogs. Because other kinds of animals

          6  are in your apartment.

          7                 They actually tremble when they hear

          8  a dog barking in the hall or they see a dog getting

          9  into an elevator. They stand back because they don't

         10  want to get into the elevator with the dog. Although

         11  there are a lot of seniors out there who have real

         12  problems and need pets and want pets, there are a

         13  lot of seniors who are on the other side of that

         14  issue. For whatever reason, maybe they have

         15  allergies, maybe they just are fearful. Those are

         16  the folks that I also hear from.

         17                 We do have a commitment that if in

         18  fact this moves today that it will be laid over and

         19  that we will reconsider some of the issues that some

         20  of us are unhappy with. But I find that I still have

         21  to vote no on this bill until we come back and make

         22  some of the changes that I'd like to see. So, I vote

         23  no. We're still going to hear from you.

         24                 COUNSEL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

         25  the affirmative, four in the negative and no
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          2  abstentions, the item is adopted. Council Members,

          3  please sign the Committee Report.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Ladies.

          5                 MS. ELINOR MOLBEGOTT: My name is

          6  Elinor Molbegott. I'm an attorney with the Humane

          7  Society of New York. I have to say, I'm very pleased

          8  that this Committee has chosen to pass this bill. It

          9  will go onto its next step. I just want to talk

         10  about the law as it is just because I think I might

         11  be the only one here that has some history. I sat

         12  here over 20 years ago in support of the law as it

         13  exists now. I've been working on this issue for

         14  about 25 years. This has been a passion of mine and

         15  I can say since graduating law school, of all the

         16  work that I have done, getting the 1983 law passed

         17  has proven in my mind to be the most rewarding and

         18  productive thing that I ever have done.

         19                 It saddens me when I see there is

         20  such concern about the law as it is because the bill

         21  that we're seeing today is a bill that seeks to try

         22  to restore some of the rights that were given to

         23  tenants under that 1983 law, but it doesn't even go

         24  as far as the 1983 law went. Again, just to give a

         25  little history, the waiver law as it exists now is
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          2  not how the waiver law started out. It wasn't how we

          3  started this process. We started with a bill that

          4  said, nobody should be denied occupancy or subject

          5  to eviction in a multiple dwelling on the grounds

          6  that they have a pet.

          7                 The feeling was that people should be

          8  able to keep a well behaved animal and not fear

          9  eviction. But the Council was not willing to go that

         10  far at that point. An idea was created at that time

         11  that said, if a landlord feels strongly enough about

         12  an animal being kept in an apartment, then we're

         13  going to tell that landlord, you're going to have to

         14  act fairly quickly to show your concern. If you

         15  don't act quickly and if you don't make an

         16  affirmative effort to find out what's going on in

         17  your buildings and who has pets, then obviously that

         18  isn't that important to you. That was the compromise

         19  reached back then.

         20                 While I can appreciate concern that

         21  it's almost is saying if you get away with breaking

         22  your lease, you can now have a pet. That was what

         23  the Council created in order not to do a blanket

         24  approval for people to have pets. If was if the

         25  landlord you think its important or owner you think
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          2  its important, you make an affirmative effort to

          3  find out who has a pet and enforce it. Because Edna

          4  Lana (phonetic) sat with me that day, actually we

          5  stood up those days, stood with me those days and

          6  she was an 86- year- old woman who had lived in her

          7  apartment for 40 years. She had baby one, baby two,

          8  baby three and baby four. When she got baby four,

          9  after a while the landlord brought a proceeding

         10  against her, not because she created a nuisance but

         11  because she violated her lease. The landlord won. I

         12  appealed her case and she died in the midst of the

         13  whole thing and she was able to keep baby four with

         14  her.

         15                 It was so sad and it was so wrong.

         16  The Council passed this legislation and all we are

         17  trying to do now and I give full credit to

         18  Councilwoman Katz for taking on this issue and

         19  fighting for the rights that tenants have had for

         20  over 20 years. All we're trying to do now is to

         21  restore some of those rights because those people

         22  who were given those rights, those animals are now

         23  dead. These rights were given in 1983. Those animals

         24  have died. I'm going to finish up. These people now

         25  are in a position of not being able to replace their
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          2  animals when that was never the intent. Councilman

          3  Manta (phonetic) made that very clear that it was

          4  never the intent. All we're asking for today is not

          5  for you to do anything new or novel, but just to

          6  impart, restore the rights that tenants had until

          7  1996. This legislation even limits that further by

          8  not saying you can get any number of additional

          9  animals and not saying you can get whatever species

         10  you like, it's limited. It's a compromised measure

         11  that gives people less rights than the Council is

         12  willing to give them in 1983.

         13                 Meanwhile, Congress has passed laws

         14  giving people the right to have pets in public

         15  housing without any restriction as to waiver and

         16  three months and running the risk of eviction. We're

         17  not asking, I don't think for that much. While I

         18  understand your concern that it sounds thoughtful, I

         19  hope you will understand the history of this and

         20  that there are people out there trying to get

         21  animals and there are animals that are being killed

         22  as we speak in the City's animal shelters because no

         23  one can come for them because people aren't allowed

         24  to replace their pets. I'm asking you for the

         25  holidays to please have a heart and not, I know
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          2  you've passed the bill already, but not make efforts

          3  to obliterate it in compromises that will take us

          4  back not to 1983, but well before that. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Next. Can I

          6  ask you to please keep it within the three minutes?

          7                 MS. MOORE: Yes. Thank you, Madam

          8  Chair and Members of the Council and especially

          9  Councilwoman Katz. My name is Maureen Moore. I'm a

         10  Broadway Actress. I'm here today as a producer

         11  testifying on behalf of Broadway Barks which

         12  wholeheartedly supports Intro 189A. Broadway Barks

         13  is an annual dog and cat adoption event created by

         14  Bernedette Peters and Mary Taylor Moore and is

         15  executively produced by Broadway Cares Equity Fights

         16  Aids. This event bring thousands of New Yorkers each

         17  year to the theater district celebrated Shoeper

         18  Alley (phonetic), Broadway celebrities from

         19  virtually every Broadway show participate in the

         20  event.

         21                 New York City derives much of its

         22  revenue from the transportation, hotel, retail, and

         23  restaurant industries. What draws the world to New

         24  York City is the theater. The theater going public

         25  is attracted to live theater because of an emotional
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          2  bond shared between the audience and the actors. New

          3  York actors are New York residents and tenants. It

          4  is not surprising that so many members of the

          5  theatrical community credit the love they share with

          6  their pets as an invaluable source of inspiration.

          7  In many cases, the only family an actor may have is

          8  with his or her loving dog or cat. Our pets cannot

          9  be removed from our lives anymore than the theater

         10  can be removed from New York City. Thank you for

         11  protecting this quality of life for us by supporting

         12  Intro 189 today.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         14                 MS. WEST: Good afternoon. My name is

         15  Diane West. I'm publisher of New York Tails

         16  magazine.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Is the light

         18  off? Bring it a little closer.

         19                 MS. WEST: Good afternoon, Council

         20  Members. My name is Diane West and I'm publisher of

         21  New York Tails magazine quarterly publication about

         22  the people and pets New York. First off, I just

         23  wanted to thank the Council Members for taking this

         24  important first step in voting with your conscience

         25  especially Councilwoman Katz for shepherding this
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          2  bill.

          3                 I just wanted to tell you a little

          4  bit about the people that you've taken the first

          5  important step to helping. We get numerous e- mails,

          6  phone calls, letters from readers every single week

          7  who are forced to make this decision between their

          8  pets and their apartment. These have become so

          9  numerous and so frequent, we often have to seek the

         10  generous help of Elinor Molbegott of the Humane

         11  Society, private attorney, Karen Copeland and

         12  officials from the ASPCA to help. Here are some

         13  excerpts of the letters we receive.

         14                 I've lived openly with cats and in a

         15  rent controlled Brooklyn apartment for years. My

         16  landlord is now just told me I am in violation of

         17  the lease agreement. What do I do? My husband is

         18  disabled. A new owner has just purchased the

         19  building. Will we have to give up our dog? We cannot

         20  move. Many of us have lived in the same building for

         21  over 25 years. A new manager wants to suddenly

         22  enforce a no dog clause. She has taken us to court

         23  because she wants to abandon the premises. What

         24  shall we do?

         25                 I'm just reading you these excerpts
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          2  because these people are not criminals. These are

          3  simply New York City residents who have responsibly

          4  shared their lives with pets for many years. Now

          5  they are suddenly in a scary place with no legal

          6  recourse. Shouldn't we rectify this? I think you've

          7  taken the first important step. It was also

          8  mentioned by one of the Council Members this issue

          9  of needs of the few overriding the needs of the

         10  many. I just wanted to bring up to the Council that

         11  there are broader ramifications of not passing this

         12  bill. There are hundreds of veterinary practices and

         13  hospitals within New York City's borders, hundreds

         14  of pet stores like large chains like Petco and Petco

         15  Discount. This is an industry that employees

         16  thousands and thousands of New Yorkers and brings in

         17  much needed tax revenue.

         18                 Yet, New York City lacks the most

         19  basic and protections for their customer base. I'm

         20  not sure this sends the right message to the

         21  business community. I'd just like to emphasize to

         22  you for the well- being of our neighbors, our

         23  businesses and our communities, it's time to go

         24  forward with this bill and thank you for taking the

         25  first important step.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Next.

          3                 MS. FRIEDMAN: Hi, my name is Joyce

          4  Friedman. I've been a New Yorker my whole life. I'm

          5  a certified clinical social worker who's worked with

          6  very troubled families, children and teens for seven

          7  years. I'd just like to make two quick points. As a

          8  social worker, I would like to make your aware that

          9  there really is a tremendous amount of benefit to

         10  allowing as many families in New York City to have

         11  companion animals as possible. Not only because of

         12  the bond we've already heard about with elderly,

         13  people are sick or disabled, but also with very

         14  troubled children and teens. Especially those who

         15  came from chaotic and violent families.

         16                 Many recent studies have shown that

         17  when these children are teens who are very troubled

         18  and possibly on the way to a sociopathic lifestyle

         19  or criminal lifestyle, their interactions with the

         20  family companion animal can really turn around their

         21  troubles by having this animal be someone they can

         22  confide in. They can develop empathy for, develop

         23  compassion for, practice in a real sense that

         24  compassion and empathy. Studies have shown that

         25  children who have a propensity to become sociopathic
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          2  or possibly even criminals, people who have shown

          3  criminal behavior, having that animal to confide in

          4  and also practice this compassion and learn empathy

          5  for, then learns empathy for people.

          6                 I think for the psychological well

          7  being of the City and its citizens and for all of us

          8  and even the safety of its citizens allowing as many

          9  families to have companion animals and of course,

         10  animals who are treated well and not nuisances which

         11  the law does cover is very, very important. I just

         12  wanted to make one more important. I truly agree

         13  that co- op boards and condo boards should continue

         14  and need to continue their democracy; the democratic

         15  practices for which they were developed.

         16                 However, they do have to do it under

         17  the law. There are certain laws that exist already

         18  or that didn't exist in the past and now do that co-

         19  op and condo boards have to follow. For example, not

         20  discriminating against certain types of people who

         21  can live in the development or any law that exists,

         22  the co- op and condo boards, they still have to

         23  follow the law. For example, a law was recently

         24  passed in New York State that wild animals cannot be

         25  owned as pets. For example, monkeys and tigers, et
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          2  cetera. So co- op boards and condo boards have to

          3  follow that law. Just as a weird hypothetical, if

          4  some co- op boards wanted to allow their residents

          5  to own a monkey, now they cannot because the law

          6  says they cannot. Yes, they are a democracy. But the

          7  democracy of the co- op board still needs to fall

          8  under the law.

          9                 One other point that just came to me

         10  about Council Member Provenzano, you brought up

         11  about understandably elderly people maybe being

         12  afraid of going into the elevator when they have a

         13  dog. Something I just thought of is that individual

         14  co- op and condo boards can set up rules perhaps in

         15  the building of times that people can walk their

         16  dogs and that could be posted. It could be flexible.

         17  Several times in the morning, afternoon, and evening

         18  and then people will know when dogs are being walked

         19  and they could coordinate their schedules together.

         20  So that's something co- op boards can maybe work out

         21  in and of themselves and maybe you could suggest

         22  that to the co- op boards. Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         24  ladies. I don't think we have any questions.

         25                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Chairman
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          2  Provenzano, can I make an impromptu due request? Is

          3  that allowed?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No. But if

          5  you want to come up later and give me the impromptu

          6  due request. I have one last panel that I'm calling

          7  since you already know the outcome of this show.

          8  Maryo is it, it's a female though. It's Mary. There

          9  is a little o on the end of the name, Gillo. Is that

         10  you? Where is she? Okay. K. Copeland, Janet and Gary

         11  Weintraub, and Ritalynn Forman. Ritalynn. It looks

         12  like Ritalynn For Man on here.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I want to

         14  welcome my constituents that are here from Forest

         15  Hills.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: This will be

         17  the last panel. Again, we have all ladies and

         18  whoever wants to start may start. Just state your

         19  name and begin.

         20                 MS. GILLIS: Good afternoon. My name

         21  is Mary Jo Gillis. I'm the founder of Welfare for

         22  Animals Global. And I was going to defer because

         23  many of the points that I wanted to make have been

         24  made quite eloquently before me. What I do want to

         25  say is that everybody is talking emotional issues.
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          2  We are emotional species. What I'm hoping against

          3  hope and again, Mr. Comrie and everybody involved

          4  and Chair Lady Provenzano that we not dehumanize the

          5  City of New York in any way fashion or form There

          6  are issues that have to be modified. I think and I'm

          7  always been a very positive thinker. I think in the

          8  end that we can bring this to fruition to the

          9  benefit of everyone.

         10                 I just want to say very quickly that

         11  on behalf of many people that I've spoken too, we

         12  want to apologize for any insults that anyone might

         13  have taken because of a passionate display here. We

         14  respect you all with all our hearts. We truly do. I

         15  know I'm passionate. I'm Italian and I'm ridiculous.

         16  But may I apologize to each and every one of you on

         17  behalf of all of us here. Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         19  I'm Italian too. I understand. Thank you.

         20                 MS. GILLIS: Thank you ever so much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I appreciate

         22  and I'll certainly let the other members that aren't

         23  here.

         24                 MS. GILLIS: Thank you. That comes

         25  from my heart.
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          2                 MS. WEINTRAUB: Hi. If I may take a

          3  few extra minutes of my husband's time, I usually

          4  do. First, I'm a little sad and disappointed --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We only want

          6  to hear you anyway. We don't want to listen to him.

          7                 MS. WEINTRAUB: Well, I speak for both

          8  of us. I'm sad and disappointed, but I'm going to

          9  try and hold on to my faith and my hope that love

         10  will win out here. I wrote you a letter. I want to

         11  thank Melinda Katz for all her hard work in getting

         12  the Pets in Housing Bill this far. It's been a long

         13  haul and getting longer. And thank you, Madame

         14  Chairperson, Madeline Provenzano and all the co-

         15  sponsors of this bill who have left. And every

         16  person in this room who cares about animals and

         17  people, who work hard to make this a better world.

         18  Please don't ever forget how grateful we are for

         19  people like you.

         20                 Okay. As many of you probably already

         21  know, Gary and I are childless and don't have much

         22  family. After four unsuccessful in- vitros and

         23  several nightmare adoption scenarios, we decided to

         24  adopt a puppy. He would be our Buddy, our child.

         25  When Buddy was one, we got him a sister, Cookie. And
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          2  Cookie and Buddy became our family. Our apartment

          3  was finally home. We felt whole. But this isn't just

          4  about us. It's about countless others who aren't as

          5  lucky. Who, but for their beloved pet, would have no

          6  one. Love is what this is really about. That should

          7  never be taken away.

          8                 It's a basic human need to care for

          9  others. The measure of our humanity is the extent to

         10  which we take responsibility for those who can't

         11  help themselves. And we're only just beginning to

         12  understand how much pets do for us. There is tons of

         13  research that demonstrates pets are physically good

         14  for us. But all you really have to do is check out

         15  the children watching outside a dog run sometime to

         16  know that. Our animal companions provide love,

         17  comfort and joy. They teach us so much. They enrich

         18  our relationships with people.

         19                 I think we need pets now more than

         20  ever. Children grow up and move away. Sometimes you

         21  can't depend on them. Friends and relatives can be

         22  fickle. Our jobs are insecure; that is when we have

         23  one. The world is more uncertain than it's been in a

         24  long time. But through it all, we know we can depend

         25  on our cats to purr in our ears and our dogs to tell
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          2  us they're happy to see us. For sure, we can all

          3  learn a lot of good stuff from them.

          4                 Gary and I have had three dogs in 20

          5  years. We lost our lost fur- baby, Chester, on June

          6  5 of this year. When we moved into our building,

          7  apartments were plentiful and pets weren't an issue.

          8  But now that we've lost Chester, they tell us it is.

          9  We can't have another. We can't afford to move. That

         10  makes us very sad. We miss Chester so much. Our

         11  apartment's is kind of empty now. Chester gave us a

         12  reason to get up in the morning. We also miss the

         13  children wanting to pet him and people smiling when

         14  they saw him and asking what kind of dog he was.

         15  Gary and I would meet nice people that way.

         16                 We miss each other too. The people we

         17  were around Chester, silly, joyful, happy. A lot of

         18  that died with Chester. So now we pray that your

         19  humanity guides you and Intro 189A becomes law in

         20  time for Chismakah, please. Thank you and God Bless.

         21  Oh, and p.s., When we rescue animals, the truth is

         22  we're really rescuing ourselves. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         24                 MS. COPELAND: My name is Karen

         25  Copeland. I'm a private practitioner who represents
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          2  people facing eviction for having animals. I'm also

          3  speaking on behalf of Legal Action for Animals, a

          4  not- for- profit organization. I would point out

          5  that the earliest fossil record that we have in our

          6  archaeological history has evidence that people

          7  lived with animals. That means that people have been

          8  replacing pets in their homes for millions of years.

          9  New York City should be no different.

         10                 I would bring to your attention a

         11  case I recently had of a woman who had lived in

         12  apartment since 1960 with a dog named Scotty. When

         13  the apartment went co- op in 1986, she still had

         14  another dog named Scotty. When the fourth Scotty

         15  died in 2004, the co- op board decided that they had

         16  to enforce their no pet clause. And this woman who

         17  wouldn't even have purchased the co- op apartment

         18  had they told her in 20 years, we're not going to

         19  permit you to have a dog, she bought it because they

         20  permitted her to have her dog; had to move out of

         21  her home at age 75.

         22                 I've had over 50 cases with people

         23  from Penn South. I've not seen one case in which

         24  there had been an allegation of nuisance from a Penn

         25  South owner. And none of the cases did anyone every
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          2  come forward and say, I'm afraid to get into the

          3  elevator. The case law has already decided that the

          4  co- op shareholder relationship is similar enough to

          5  that of landlord/tenant relationship that it should

          6  be viewed in that same context under the law. I

          7  would urge you to vote for the current bill as it is

          8  in its current form without any additional changes,

          9  without giving any special considerations to co- ops

         10  or condominiums. Because often times people will

         11  purchase a co- op or condo because they are

         12  permitted to have a dog. And then years later the

         13  board will decide, well we are going to change our

         14  minds and we're not going to permit you to have a

         15  dog anymore. Then these people again, they're left

         16  with the choice of having to live dog free for after

         17  years and years of having an animal or move out of

         18  their home.

         19                 I want to thank all the Committee

         20  Members for voting on the bill as it so far. But I

         21  would urge you to vote for a future bill as it is in

         22  its current form without any additional changes.

         23  Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         25                 MS. FORMAN: I want to thank the
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          2  Council Members for giving me this opportunity to

          3  speak. It's kind of a story that's been told many,

          4  many times; perhaps too many times. It's a two- fold

          5  story. My name is Ritalynn Forman. I'm a Humane

          6  Educational Specialist. I deal with compassion and

          7  this whole theme is compassion. The truth is, it's

          8  all about love and caring. I am speaking on behalf

          9  of a very close friend of mine, disabled person,

         10  living in a co- op with obscure laws when she moved

         11  in. She had a dog. Her dog passed away recently. She

         12  was devastated. I was devastated. I was afraid for

         13  her well- being. She was threatening suicide. I did

         14  not know what to do. She said she was going to get

         15  another dog and I said I'm afraid. These co- ops and

         16  laws are so tenuous. She did adopt this beautiful

         17  little 13 pound, eight year old dog; non-

         18  threatening. Low and behold, she receives a letter.

         19  Threaten of eviction unless she gets rid of the dog.

         20                 Thanks to Darryl Vernon who had

         21  helped me in a situation. If I have a moment, I will

         22  explain my ridiculous situation. She's impoverished.

         23  She's living. She has to cut down on medication

         24  because she can't afford her medication. She had to

         25  put down a $500 retainer fee in order to go into a
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          2  court and fight for the right to keep this beautiful

          3  little creature which is in essence keeping her

          4  alive. She's terribly depressed and now we wonder

          5  what the outcome is going to be. We hope for the

          6  best.

          7                 I had the love of my life in my

          8  apartment in a co- op with dubious laws. I was able

          9  to have this dog. My dog passed away. I won't go

         10  into what I went through. But a friend of mine in an

         11  emergency situation asked me to dog sit for four

         12  days. I took this dog out in the street. I was

         13  reported. I got a threatening letter; notice to

         14  cure. I was terrified. Called Darryl Vernon who had

         15  saved my life. He said if this goes into court and

         16  it probably won't, it could cost you $5 to $7,000.

         17  Is this sanity? The reason that I had no problem is

         18  because I didn't have that dog anymore. I gave the

         19  dog back to my friend.

         20                 When we speak about rights and

         21  wrongs, this is diabolical what goes on. And the

         22  whole concept of co- ops and I live in a gestapo co-

         23  op who can change the rule. There is no vote. We

         24  didn't vote as people. You know how many dogs came

         25  into that building that they were not allowed to
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          2  keep them. People went into litigation. There is no

          3  rule. This is a lie. They make their own rules. I

          4  have never heard, let's sit down and make a

          5  committee, have a meeting. Should we allow this to

          6  be a building where we allow animals in or not? I

          7  never heard that. I've been in that building for 25

          8  years. These are the things we have to face. And I

          9  thank you for giving me permission to speak.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         11  Thank you all. We have several speakers that have

         12  signed up. But we will not be able to hear them.

         13  What it is, quarter after four; quarter after three.

         14  But as you know, the legislation did pass. There

         15  probably will be a couple of changes made to it.

         16  Basically you should all be pleased with yourselves

         17  and your attendance at these hearings. Some of you,

         18  I know, are repeats and repeats. I thank you all for

         19  coming down. I wish you all a happy holiday. I think

         20  this hearing is closed. This hearing is closed.

         21                 (Meeting adjourned at 3:20 p.m.)
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